CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE STUDENT HANDBOOK



LAST UPDATED: 01/24/2021

COPYRIGHT, LEGAL NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

This publication is protected under the US Copyright Act of 1976 and all other applicable international, federal, state and local laws, and all rights are reserved, including but not limited to copy, sale, distribution, and reproduction rights.

This material is for the exclusive use of the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* Chesterfield Spiritualist College

COMPLIANCE NOTICE

The *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* is a religious institution exempt from state regulation and oversight in the state of Indiana.

Table of Contents

COPYRIGHT, LEGAL NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER	2
COMPLIANCE NOTICE	2
THE INDIANA ASSOCATION OF SPIRITUALISTS	5
IAOS DECLARATION OF PRINCIPLES	5
ABOUT THE INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF SPIRITUALISTS	6
IAOS IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION	
IAOS BOARD OF TRUSTEES RIGHT OF PROGRAM PARTICIPATION, EXCLUSI CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE VALUE STATEMENT	
CERTIFICATION STUDY PROGRAMS	
SEMINARY STUDY OPPORTUNITIES	
WEEK-LONG SEMINARIES	
WEEKEND SEMINARIES	
INTENSIVES	
DISTANCE LEARNING	9
SEMINARY STUDENT SCHOLARSHIPS	10
DORSCH-KUIPER SCHOLARSHIP	10
NEW STUDENT INCENTIVE	10
IMPORTANT PROGRAM INFORMATION	11
ACADEMIC RECORDS	11
CERTIFICATION	
CLASS SIZE REQUIREMENTS	
ELECTIVE COURSES	12
DISCLAIMER	
TESTING FOR PROGRAM COMPLETION	
ADDITIONAL PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS	13
HEALING CERTIFICATION	
MEDIUM MISSIONARY CERTIFICATION	
ASSOCIATE MINISTER CERTIFICATION	
ORDINATION CERTIFICATION	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL I	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL II	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL III	
ACADEMIC ADVISORS AND SPIRITUAL HEALING MENTORS	
KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS AND TERMSORDINATION	
ORDINATION ORDINATION BY SANCTION	
SEMINARY ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS	
SEMINARY REGISTRATION PROCESS	
WEEK-LONG SEMINARIES	
WEEK-EONG SEMINARIES	
DISTANCE LEARNING SEMINARIES	
STUDENT GRIEVANCES	
STUDENT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS	
SEMINARY ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENT	

FIRST TIME STUDENT INFORMATION	18
STUDENT EXPECTATIONS	18
WHAT TO BRING TO CAMPUS	
VOLUNTEER OPPORTUNITIES	19
TUITION, FEES, AND REFUNDS	19
SEMINARY REGISTRATION AND CLASS FEES	19
TESTING FEES	
WESTERN HOTEL AND MAXON FELLOWSHIP CENTER & CAFETERIA	
IAOS MEMBERSHIP AND CERTIFICATION RENEWAL FEES	
CLASS DROP/ADD POLICY	
CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE ACADEMIC PROGRAMS	21
SPIRITUAL SEEKER	
SPIRITUAL SEEKER REQUIREMENTS	
SPIRITUAL HEALER CERTIFICATION	
SPIRITUAL HEALER CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS	
MEDIUM MISSIONARY CERTIFICATION	
MEDIUM MISSIONARY CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS	
ASSOCIATE MINISTER CERTIFICATION	
ASSOCIATE MINISTER CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS	
ORDINATION CERTIFICATION	
ORDINATION CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS METAPHYSICS LEVEL I	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL I REQUIREMENTS	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL II	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL II REQUIREMENTS	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL III	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL III REQUIREMENTS	
CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM	
CORE CURRICULUM COURSE DESCRIPTIONS	
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS	
DORSCH-KUIPER SCHOLARSHIP APPLICATION	36
INTENT TO TEST FORM	
SPIRITUAL HEALING AFFIDAVIT	38
RECORD OF COMMUNITY SERVICE	39
PUBLIC WORSHIP SERVICE AFFIDAVIT	
PROGRAM COMPLETION SELF CHECKLIST FORMS FOR STUDENTS	41
SPIRITUAL SEEKER	41
SPIRITUAL HEALER	42
MEDIUM MISSIONARY	
ASSOCIATE MINISTER	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
ORDINATION	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL I	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL II	
METAPHYSICS LEVEL III	
IAOS DRESS CODE FOR SERVICES	59

THE INDIANA ASSOCATION OF SPIRITUALISTS

IAOS DECLARATION OF PRINCIPLES

- 1. We believe in Infinite Intelligence.
- 2. We believe that the phenomena of Nature, both physical and spiritual, are the expression of Infinite Intelligence.
- 3. We affirm that a correct understanding of such expression, and living in accordance therewith, constitute true religion.
- 4. We affirm that the existence and personal identity of the individual continue after the change called death.
- 5. We affirm that communication with the so-called dead is a fact, scientifically proven by the phenomena of Spiritualism.
- 6. We believe that the highest morality is contained in the Golden Rule: 'Whatsoever ye would that others should do unto you, do ye also unto them."
- 7. We affirm the moral responsibility of the individual, and that we make our own happiness or unhappiness as we obey or disobey Nature's physical and spiritual laws.
- 8. We affirm that the doorway to reformation is never closed against any human soul, here or hereafter.
- 9. We affirm that the precepts of prophecy and healing contained in the Bible and all sacred writings of the world are divine attributes proven through mediumship.

ABOUT THE INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF SPIRITUALISTS

The fundamental objectives of the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* are:

Sec.1. To develop a knowledge by study and teaching of the highest spiritual powers of intellect and inspiration; to study and teach a knowledge of man's obligations to the true purpose of this life and the life after the change called death; to study and teach the highest principles of virtue; and to heighten the moral conception of justice and truth.

Sec.2. To seek and develop a knowledge of the real relationship between man and spirit.

Sec.3. To promote a knowledge of the principles and truth of Spiritualism and to hold communication with the spirits of the departed through the natural powers of mediumship.

Sec. 4. The highest aim shall be to present such phenomena to the world as shall demonstrate the existence of a spiritual world and the continuity of life beyond the change called death.

For promoting these inestimable ends, this Association was formed and now exists. These fundamental aims are inerrant and unchangeable.

The IAOS was legally organized in 1888, in the state of Indiana. All authority concerning the granting of certification in the denomination's seminary programs rests with the Board of Trustees of the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists*.

IAOS IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

Indiana Association of Spiritualists / Camp Chesterfield 50 Lincoln Dr., Chesterfield, IN 46017

PHONE: 765-378-0235 E-MAIL: admin@campchesterfield.net

WEB: www.campchesterfield.net/education

Chesterfield Spiritualist College E-mail: education@campchesterfield.net

IAOS BOARD OF TRUSTEES (EXECUTIVE BOARD) RIGHT OF PROGRAM PARTICIPATION, EXCLUSION AND DENIAL

The Executive Board shall have the power and authority to test all levels of certification and ordination and issue certificates to those they deem worthy, fix the charges therefore and the length of time such certificates shall be valid, and the conditions under which such examination or test shall be held, and to recall or cancel certificates so issued for just cause.

The Executive Board shall have the power and authority to ordain ministers, with all the privileges and functions lawfully pertaining thereto. None but capable public speakers shall be eligible for Ordination; and they shall first prove to the satisfaction of the Board their forensic ability and knowledge of the philosophy of Spiritualism, and their worthiness of character before they shall be ordained, and when ordained shall be given a certificate under seal of the Association, signed by its President and Secretary setting forth such Ordination. The fee for such Ordination and the annual renewal fee for Ordination shall be fixed by the Executive Board.

CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE VALUE STATEMENT

The Chesterfield Spiritualist College strives to bring academic excellence and success to its students. We encourage students to demonstrate the following qualities:

- Academic honesty and integrity
- Conscientious pursuit of excellence in one's work
- Respect for the rights, differences and dignity of others
- Demonstrable desire to be of service to others
- Adherence to confidentiality of clients, fellow students and others
- Acceptance of personal responsibility and accountability for one's actions and behavior
- Pursuit and demonstration of a healthy spiritual life

CERTIFICATION STUDY PROGRAMS

REQUIRED CLASSES

SPIRITUAL SEEKER

(required for all certification levels)

Chakras
Communication
Fundamentals of Spiritualism
Guides and Guidance
History of Modern Spiritualism
Life After Death
Living the Spiritual Life
Meditation
Natural Law I
Public Speaking

MEDIUM MISSIONARY

Ethics
Intro to the Séance Room*
Intro to Trance Mediumship*
Laws of Mediumship
Natural Law II*
Practical Aspects of Mediumship
Public Presentation of Mediumship
Spiritual Anatomy
Symbols I
Symbols II*
Five (5) Elective Classes

ORDINATION

Advanced Pastoral Care and Counseling
Church Business
Emergency Pastoral Care
Pastoral Care for the Dying and Their Family
Preparation for the Ministry II*
Ritual in the Spiritualist Church
Sacred (Eastern) Writings I
Sacred (Western) Writings II
Sermon Preparation II*
Spiritual Reflection for Ministry*

SPIRITUAL HEALING

Ethics
Healing Addictive Behavior
Prayer
Spiritual Anatomy
Spiritual Healing I
Spiritual Healing II*
Spiritual Healing Service Practicum*
Distance Spiritual Healing*
Two (2) Healing Elective Classes

**Distance Spiritual Healing is a required class for those beginning their CSC studies in 2020 later. For those before 2020, Three Healing Electives are required, and it is recommended that one of the electives be Distance Spiritual Healing.

ASSOCIATE MINISTER

Advanced Symbols Interpretation*

Basic Unity of Religions

Discernment of Call*

Good Grief

Introduction to Pastoral Care

Prayer

Preparation for the Ministry I

Sermon Preparation I

Spiritual Healing I

Spiritualism and the study of the Old and New Testaments

Five (5) Elective Classes

METAPHYSICS LEVEL I

Astrology I
Auras
Basic Tarot
Color
Ethics
Fundamentals of Metaphysics
Numerology I
Palmistry I
Sacred Calendar
Symbology: The Language of the Universe
Five (5) Elective Classes

METAPHYSICS LEVEL II

Astrology II*
Candle Ceremony
Hermetic Philosophy
Hermetic Tarot*
Metaphysical Journaling
Numerology II*
Palmistry II*
Qabalistic Studies
Ritual Work of the Metaphysician*
Working with Moon Energies
Five (5) Metaphysics Elective
Classes

METAPHYSICS LEVEL III

Angelic Consciousness
Astrology III*
Dream Work
Eastern Mysteries*
Global Shamanism
Hermetic Practice and Alchemical Thinking*
Numerology III*
Preparation for Direct Study
Science of the Soul and the Masters
Western Mysteries*

SEMINARY STUDY OPPORTUNITIES

WEEK-LONG SEMINARIES

Three week-long seminaries are offered by Chesterfield Spiritualist College on the grounds of Historic Camp Chesterfield. The week-long seminaries are offered in April, June & October.

WEEKEND SEMINARIES

Four weekend seminaries are offered by Chesterfield Spiritualist College on the grounds of Historic Camp Chesterfield. The weekend seminaries are held in March, May, August & September.

INTENSIVES

Chesterfield Spiritualist College on the grounds of Historic Camp Chesterfield offers weekend intensive courses. These courses, when completed successfully, earn the student elective credits towards their certification.

DISTANCE LEARNING

A virtual classroom where students can participate and earn academic credit from the convenience of their own home. Instruction is facilitated through a web-based, video conferencing program. Quality teacher to student interaction continues as if all were in the same physical location.

SEMINARY STUDENT SCHOLARSHIPS

DORSCH-KUIPER SCHOLARSHIP

ELIGIBILITY

This academic <u>scholarship application</u> (pg. 36) is available to any student who:

- 1. Is a member in good standing in the IAOS for at least two years prior to the scholarship application.
- 2. Is actively participating in the ordination program of the Chesterfield Spiritualist College.
- 3. Has attained the certification of Associate Minister or has successfully completed at least five or more classes toward Associate Minister certification through the IAOS.

The scholarship award will be the decision of the Education Committee.

The maximum scholarship award per student is \$550 and must be used within two years of the receipt of the award. This scholarship will be administered as credit for classes; it is not a cash award. The scholarship award will be used only to complete the classes required for ordination. The application process is strictly confidential and will include the completion of the application form, a written essay outlining the student's desire for the scholarship, three personal/professional letters of recommendation, and an interview by representatives of the Education Committee.

The Dorsch-Kuiper Scholarship application is available to any qualified student upon electronic or written request to education@campchesterfield.net.

All applications and supporting materials must be received no later than November 30th of each year to be considered for this scholarship. Any late or incomplete applications will be automatically disqualified.

APPLICATION DEADLINE FOR THE DORSCH-KUIPER SCHOLARSHIP NOVEMBER 30TH

SCHOLARSHIP WILL BE AWARDED BY JANUARY 1ST

NEW STUDENT INCENTIVE

This incentive is established to encourage IAOS members to introduce friends and family to Camp Chesterfield and the Chesterfield Spiritualist College.

- 1. The incentive will be awarded to a new, first-time student who attend on campus classes:
 - a. is a first-time student (who has never previously taken classes at Chesterfield Spiritualist College).
 - b. advance-registers for classes no later than the deadline for each academic event.

- c. is accompanied to the Chesterfield Spiritualist College by a current student who is enrolled in the same academic seminar and who is a member of the IAOS.
- d. is either a member or a non-member of the IAOS at the time of registration.
- 2. The new student and current student must both be enrolled at the same week-long or weekend academic seminar.
- 3. The incentive amount will be either \$65 or \$75 depending on the new student's membership status.
- 4. The current student will be identified on the new student's registration form and will receive an award for one academic class. The award will be used within one year of issuance.
- 5. The incentive must be used within one year of issuance.

IMPORTANT PROGRAM INFORMATION

ACADEMIC RECORDS

In accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, students have the right to see their academic records in the Chesterfield Spiritualist College office. These records will not be released to any other individual or organization, except with the student's written request. For additional information regarding this policy, please contact the Chesterfield Spiritualist College at education@campchesterfield.net.

A student's coursework credits will be valid for 10 years from the date they were earned. After 10 years, a course will need to be retaken to qualify for credit towards certification.

CERTIFICATION

Certification is not automatically conferred after all academic requirements are completed. First-hand observations of attitude, service, participation, performance and suitability are made by Chesterfield Spiritualist College committee members and the IAOS Board of Trustee members over the term of the student's study in a certification program.

CLASS SIZE REQUIREMENTS

Class size is important to both students and teachers in order to provide the optimum learning environment. Please be advised that:

- 1. a class required for certification will not be taught unless there are at least two (2) students registered
- 2. an elective class will not be taught unless there are at least two (2) students registered

ELECTIVE COURSES

Electives can only be used for one program requirement.

Electives qualifying for Spiritual Healing certification must be Healing Electives. Electives qualifying for Metaphysics Level II must be Metaphysical Electives. Program specific electives are not required for any other program.

DISCLAIMER

It is incumbent that all IAOS certified healers, medium missionaries, associate ministers, and ordained ministers, be knowledgeable and comply with the laws of the State, County, and Locality in which they reside or practice. They vow such loyalty upon receiving certification. This directive is placed for the legal protection of the individual, as well as the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists*.

Neither the Chesterfield Spiritualist College nor the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* are responsible for payment of any legal court costs, fines, or financial penalties for which an individual certified through the IAOS might become liable.

TESTING FOR PROGRAM COMPLETION

Each program level requires the student to show proficiency in the coursework for that program level.

Once all academic and practical requirements have been completed, a student may submit an <u>Intent</u> to Test (pg. 37) to education@campchesterfield.net.

Intent to Test and all required documentation must be submitted to education@campchesterfield.net one month prior to the date the student plans to test.

The testing form and fee must be submitted 24 hours prior to the date in which the student plans to test.

Students must pass a comprehensive written exam covering program coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

Students will also be required to successfully complete an oral demonstration of their program with the testing committee.

ADDITIONAL PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

Each student who is wishing to complete the program of spiritual seeker, spiritual healer, medium missionary, associate minister, ordination, metaphysics levels I, II or III from the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* is required to adhere to all Additional Program Requirements for the programs they participate in. If the student does not have access to a local Spiritualist church, it is his/her responsibility to contact education@campchesterfield.net to assist with the Additional Program Requirements.

HEALING CERTIFICATION

- Six (6) approved student Spiritual Healing Services to include leading two (2) services for the congregation.
- Six (6) affidavits (pg. 38) of spiritual healing ability.

MEDIUM MISSIONARY CERTIFICATION

- Successfully complete an oral demonstration of mediumship abilities.
- Development classes: Twelve (12) classes with a certified staff mediumship development teacher over a period of three (3) week-long seminaries.
- Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 12 classes and signature of the teacher is required.
- Student Services: A minimum of three (3) clairvoyant demonstrations during three (3) different approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

ASSOCIATE MINISTER CERTIFICATION

- Development Classes: Four (4) classes with one (1) certified staff mediumship development class teacher during a week-long seminary.
- Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 4 classes and signature of the teacher is required.
- Student Services: A minimum of three (3) sermons during approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

- Public Worship Services: Demonstration of sermon and clairvoyance at the same service. Six (6) public worship services at a minimum of three (3) different churches. A <u>letter</u> (pg 40) from each church served stating date, service performed and signed by presiding Spiritualist minister or board member. *Lectures do not qualify for this requirement.
- Community Service: 30 hours of <u>community service</u> (pg. 38) with a maximum of 10 hours at Camp Chesterfield. <u>Community Service must be approved prior to performing the service</u>. For approval email <u>education@campchesterfield.net</u>.

ORDINATION CERTIFICATION

- Development Classes: Four (4) classes with one (1) certified staff mediumship development class teacher during a week-long seminary.
- Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 4 classes and signature of the teacher is required.
- Student Services: A minimum of three (3) chairperson demonstrations during approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.
- Public Worship Services: Demonstration of sermon and clairvoyance at the same service.
 Eight (8) public worship services at a minimum of three (3) different churches. A <u>letter</u>
 (pg. 40) from each church served stating date, service performed and signed by the
 presiding Spiritualist minister or board member. *Lectures do not qualify for this
 requirement.
- Community Service: 40 hours of <u>community service</u> (pg. 38) with a maximum of 15 hours at Camp Chesterfield. <u>Community Service must be approved prior to performing the service</u>. For approval email <u>education@campchesterfield.net</u>.

METAPHYSICS LEVEL I

- Metaphysical Development classes: Eight (8) classes with a certified staff metaphysical development teacher over a period of 2 week-long seminaries.
- Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of 8 classes and signature of the teacher is required.
- Student services: Assist staff teacher with one metaphysical ceremony.
- Minimum of two (2) years of ongoing study through Chesterfield Spiritualist College.

• Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

METAPHYSICS LEVEL II

- Metaphysical Development classes: Eight (8) classes with a metaphysical development teacher over a period of 2 week-long seminaries.
- Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of 8 classes and signature of the teacher is required.
- Assist in two (2) approved metaphysical ceremonies.
- At least one (1) full year of ongoing study through Chesterfield Spiritualist College after completion of Level I
- Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

METAPHYSICS LEVEL III

- Metaphysical Development classes: Eight (8) classes with a metaphysical development teacher over a period of 2 week-long seminaries.
- Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of 8 classes and signature of the teacher is required.
- Assist in one (1) approved metaphysical ceremony.
- Independently create, design and implement one (1) metaphysical ceremony to be conducted during an approved metaphysical ceremony with approval and oversight of a metaphysical development teacher.
- Directed Study: Under the supervision of your Metaphysical Mentor, write a 5,000-word paper on a metaphysical topic.
- At least one (1) full year of ongoing study through Chesterfield Spiritualist College following completion of Level II.
- Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

ACADEMIC ADVISORS AND SPIRITUAL HEALING MENTORS

Academic Advisors are the first point of contact for student questions and concerns, and they will assist students through their academic programs. Students should email education@campchesterfield.net with their questions/concerns and one of the academic advisors will reply. All questions/concerns will receive an initial reply within 48 hours.

All students are encouraged to ask the academic advisors for advice and guidance or assistance dealing with specific problems or concerns. These advisors can be trusted to conduct all such personal exchanges with honorable discretion and privacy.

As part of Chesterfield Spiritualist College continued development and expansion of the academic curriculum, Spiritual Healing Mentors have been added as an additional resource for our healing students. The Spiritual Healing Mentors assist healing students with the following:

- Answer any questions related to the Spiritual Healer program, specifically, and academic program generally.
- Guidance and suggestions regarding an individual student's healing class schedule
- Assistance with Spiritual Healing Electives
- Facilitate scheduling for Student led congregational healing services
- Guidance developing the content for a congregational healing service

The Director of Healing will facilitate the assignment of students to a Spiritual Healing Mentor. Students should email education@campchesterfield.net – Attn: Director of Healing for further information

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS AND TERMS

S = Spiritual Seeker
M = Medium Missionary
A = Associate Minister
O = Ordination
H = Spiritual Healer
HE=Healing Elective
E = Elective
MP = Metaphysics Level I
MP2=Metaphysics Level II
MP3=Metaphysics Level III
ME=Metaphysical Elective

ORDINATION

Ordination is not an honor automatically conferred merely after academic requirements are completed. Ordination as a Minister in the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* implies a solemn and significant responsibility on the part of the recipient.

ORDINATION BY SANCTION

Any person ordained to the ministry of any other religious sect, denomination or other religious organization shall not be deemed an ordained minister within the meaning of the provisions of the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists*, unless the person shall receive Ordination by Sanction from the IAOS. Eligibility for IAOS, Ordination by Sanction is handled on a purely individual basis and is at the sole discretion of the IAOS Board of Trustees.

SEMINARY ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

Students wishing to participate in Chesterfield Spiritualist College classes must be at least 18 years of age. Membership with the *Indiana Association of Spiritualists* is not required.

SEMINARY REGISTRATION PROCESS

WEEK-LONG SEMINARIES

For both week-long and weekend seminaries, students have the option to register online, in-person, or over the phone with the IAOS office.

Students attending in-person week-long seminaries must confirm registration during the seminary check-in on the Sunday prior to the start of the in-person week-long seminary. Students must also attend the Sunday evening Dedication Service.

WEEKEND SEMINARIES

For both week-long and weekend seminaries, students have the option to register online, in-person, or over the phone with the IAOS office.

Students attending weekend seminaries will confirm their registration at the beginning of their first class with their instructor.

DISTANCE LEARNING SEMINARIES

For distance learning seminaries, students have the option to register online, or over the phone with the IAOS office. Registration closes 24 hours prior to the start of each distance learning class.

STUDENT GRIEVANCES

Any student with a troubling challenge is encouraged to consult with an academic advisor for guidance first. At that time, together they decide any next steps that need to be taken. One option is that another academic advisor might be taken into confidence in order to resolve the issue, especially if it concerns another student, teacher, or administrator.

After consultation with the academic advisor, if major concerns remain unresolved, a student may put his/her personal situation in writing and present it to education@campchesterfield.net and/or to the Secretary of the IAOS Board of Trustees. Each submitted issue will be taken seriously and the student will receive an acknowledgement of the complaint within 2 weeks.

STUDENT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Students working towards their certifications are required to participate in student services. Assignments to serve in student services for the week will take place following the Dedication Service. Should there not be enough students to participate, the academic advisors will have the authority to assign students as needed.

SEMINARY ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENT

Students must attend a class in its entirety to earn credit towards certification.

FIRST TIME STUDENT INFORMATION

STUDENT EXPECTATIONS

Students are expected to attend all student services during seminaries. Students are encouraged to attend a Consecration Service prior to participating in their own Service.

WHAT TO BRING TO CAMPUS

Students working during a student service are required to follow the IAOS Dress Code for Services. See Appendix G for details.

Students will have the opportunity to sign up for seances, circles, development classes and readings with Camp Chesterfield residents and staff. Check with the individual Medium to determine what type of payment is accepted for these activities.

Please contact the administration office, admin@campchesterfield.net to discuss specific dietary needs, prior to your arrival.

VOLUNTEER OPPORTUNITIES

Students are **strongly encouraged** to volunteer in our Maxon Fellowship Center, Administration Office, Tree of Life Books and Gifts Store, and the Western Hotel during Seminaries. Volunteer opportunities will be offered during the Seminary or students can volunteer in advance through the IAOS office.

TUITION, FEES, AND REFUNDS

SEMINARY REGISTRATION AND CLASS FEES

Class fee for an IAOS Member: \$65.00 per class Class fee for a Non-IAOS Member: \$75.00 per class Class fee for distance learning courses: \$80.00 per class

Late Registration: \$25 (after close of walk-in registration)

There is NO Lat Registration fee for distance learning courses.

Advance Registration**

Discount: \$5.00 per class

TESTING FEES

Spiritual Seeker: \$30.00 Spiritual Healer: \$30.00 Medium Missionary: \$30.00 Associate Minister: \$40.00 Ordination: \$55.00 Metaphysics I: \$30.00 Metaphysics II: \$40.00 Metaphysics III: \$55.00

^{**}Registration form and tuition payment in full must be received in the Administration Office no later than two weeks before walk-in registration begins. Available to members and non-members. There is NO Advance Registration discount for distance learning courses.

WESTERN HOTEL AND MAXON FELLOWSHIP CENTER & CAFETERIA

Western Hotel

The Western Hotel has Dorm Rooms, Twin and Full Bedrooms to allow students the opportunity to stay on-site during Seminary events. Current IAOS Members will receive a 13% discount on room prices. Reservations can be made online at www.campchesterfield.net or by contacting the IAOS Administration Office. Outside food is not allowed in the dorms & private rooms.

Maxon Fellowship Center & Cafeteria

The Maxon Fellowship Center & Cafeteria will be open daily during seminary events.

IAOS MEMBERSHIP AND CERTIFICATION RENEWAL FEES

IAOS yearly Membership: \$50.00 *DUE: December 31 Spiritual Healer renewal: \$30.00 *DUE: December 31 Medium Missionary renewal: \$30.00 *DUE: December 31 Associate Minister renewal: \$40.00 *DUE: December 31 Ordination renewal: \$55.00 *DUE: December 31

CLASS DROP/ADD POLICY

In the event a class is canceled by college administration, for any reason, a full refund will be given to the student. When a student chooses to switch classes there will be no cancellation charge. When a student chooses to cancel a class after classes have started, an administrative cancellation fee of \$25 will be charged.

Student switching a class: No charge Class cancellation by administration: No charge Class dropped by student: \$25.00

Students should contact education@campchesterfield.net for resolution of extenuating circumstances.

CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE ACADEMIC PROGRAMS

SPIRITUAL SEEKER

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Chakras
Communication
Fundamentals of Spiritualism
Guides and Guidance
History of Modern Spiritualism
Life After Death
Living the Spiritual Life
Meditation
Natural Law I
Public Speaking

SPIRITUAL SEEKER REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for one (1) year. Minimum of one year ongoing study at Chesterfield Spiritualist College. Completion of all ten (10) current Spiritual Seeker classes.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

SPIRITUAL HEALER CERTIFICATION

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Ethics

Healing Addictive Behavior

Prayer

Spiritual Anatomy

Spiritual Healing I

Spiritual Healing II* (Prerequisite: Spiritual Healing I)

Spiritual Healing Service Practicum* (Prerequisite: Spiritual Healing II)

Distance Spiritual Healing** (Prerequisite: Spiritual Healing I)

Two (2) Healing Elective Classes

^{**} Distance Spiritual Healing is a required class for those beginning their CSC studies in 2020 later. For those before 2020, Three Healing Electives are required, and it is recommended that one of the electives be Distance Spiritual Healing.

SPIRITUAL HEALER CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for two (2) years.

Minimum of two (2) years of ongoing study at Chesterfield Spiritualist College. Must have successfully completed the Spiritual Seeker test with a score of 85% or higher.

20 credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 8 Spiritual Healer, 2 Healing Electives)

Six (6) approved student Spiritual Healing Services at Camp Chesterfield to include leading two (2) services for the congregation.

Six (6) affidavits (pg. 38) of spiritual healing ability.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

MEDIUM MISSIONARY CERTIFICATION

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Ethics

Introduction to the Séance Room* (Prerequisite: Guides and Guidance) Introduction to Trance Mediumship* (Prerequisite: Guides and Guidance)

Laws of Mediumship

Natural Law II* (Prerequisite: Natural Law I)

Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship

Spiritual Anatomy

Symbols I

Symbols II* (Prerequisite: Symbols I)

Five (5) Elective Classes

MEDIUM MISSIONARY CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for two (2) years.

Minimum of two years ongoing study at Chesterfield Spiritualist College.

Must have successfully completed the Spiritual Seeker test with a score of 85% or higher.

25 Credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 10 Medium Missionary, 5 Electives).

Successfully complete an oral demonstration of mediumship abilities

Development classes: Twelve (12) classes with a certified staff mediumship development teacher over a period of three (3) week-long seminaries:

Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 12 classes and signature of the teacher is required.

Student Services: A minimum of three (3) clairvoyant demonstrations during three different approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

ASSOCIATE MINISTER CERTIFICATION

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Advanced Symbols Interpretation* (Prerequisite: Symbols II)

Basic Unity of Religions

Discernment of Call* (Prerequisite: Medium Missionary Certification)

Good Grief

Introduction to Pastoral Care and Counseling

Prayer

Preparation for the Ministry I

Sermon Preparation I

Spiritual Healing I

Spiritualism and the Study of the Old and New Testament

Five (5) Elective Classes

ASSOCIATE MINISTER CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for three (3) years.

Minimum of three (3) years of ongoing study at Chesterfield Spiritualist College.

Hold a current IAOS Medium Missionary Certification.

At least one (1) full year of study after receiving Medium Missionary certification.

40 academic credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 15 Medium Missionary, 10 Associate Minister. 5 Electives).

Development Classes: Four (4) classes with one (1) certified staff mediumship development class teacher during a week-long seminary.

Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 4 classes and signature of the teacher is required.

Student Services: A minimum of three (3) sermons during approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

Public Worship Services: Demonstration of sermon and clairvoyance at the same service. (<u>Lectures do not qualify for this requirement.</u>) Six (6) public worship services at a minimum of three (3) different churches. A <u>letter</u> (pg. 40) from each church served stating date, service performed and signed by presiding minister or board member.

Community Service: 30 hours of <u>community service</u> (pg. 38) with a maximum of 10 hours at Camp Chesterfield. <u>Community Service must be approved prior to performing the service.</u> For approval email <u>education@campchesterfield.net</u>.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

ORDINATION CERTIFICATION

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Advanced Pastoral Care and Counseling

Church Business

Emergency Pastoral Care

Pastoral Care for the Dying and Their Family

Preparation for the Ministry II* (Prerequisite: Preparation for the Ministry I)

Ritual in the Spiritualist Church

Sacred (Eastern) Writings I

Sacred (Western) Writings II

Sermon Preparation II* (Prerequisite: Sermon Preparation I)

Spiritual Reflection for Ministry

ORDINATION CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for four (4) years.

Minimum of four (4) years of ongoing study at Chesterfield Spiritualist College.

Hold a current IAOS Associate Minister certification.

At least one (1) full year of study after receiving Associate Minister certification.

50 academic credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 15 Medium Missionary, 15 Associate Minister, 10 Ordination).

Development Classes: Four (4) classes with one (1) certified staff mediumship development class teacher during a week-long seminary.

Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 4 classes and signature of the teacher is required.

Student Services: A minimum of three (3) chairperson demonstrations during approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

Public Worship Services: Demonstration of sermon and clairvoyance at the same service. (<u>Lectures do not qualify for this requirement</u>). Eight (8) public worship services at a minimum of three (3) different churches. A <u>letter</u> (pg. 40) from each church served stating date, service performed and signed by the presiding minister or board member.

Community Service: 40 hours of <u>community service</u> (pg. 38) with a maximum of 15 hours at Camp Chesterfield. <u>Community Service must be approved prior to performing the service.</u> For approval email <u>education@campchesterfield.net.</u>

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

METAPHYSICS LEVEL I

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Astrology I

Auras

Basic Tarot

Color

Ethics

Fundamentals of Metaphysics

Numerology I

Palmistry I

Sacred Calendar

Symbology: The Language of the Universe

Five (5) Elective Classes

METAPHYSICS LEVEL I REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for two (2) years. 25 Credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 10 Level I, 5 Electives).

Metaphysical Development classes: 8 classes with a certified staff development teacher over a period of 2 week-long seminaries.

Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of 8 classes and signature of the teacher is required.

Student services: Assist staff teacher with one metaphysical ceremony.

Minimum of two (2) years of ongoing study through Chesterfield Spiritualist College.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

METAPHYSICS LEVEL II

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Astrology II* (Prerequisite: Astrology I)

Candle Ceremony Hermetic Philosophy Hermetic Tarot* (Prerequisite: Basic Tarot & Hermetic Philosophy)

Metaphysical Journaling

Numerology II* (Prerequisite: Numerology I)

Palmistry II* (Prerequisite: Palmistry I)

Ouabalistic Studies

Ritual Work of the Metaphysician* (Prerequisite: Candle Ceremony and Fundamentals of

Metaphysics)

Working with Moon Energies

Five (5) Metaphysical Elective Classes

METAPHYSICS LEVEL II REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for three (3) years. 40 credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 15 Level I, 10 Level II, 5 Metaphysical Electives).

Metaphysical Development classes: 8 classes with a metaphysical development teacher over a period of 2 week-long seminaries.

Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of 8 classes and signature of the teacher is required.

Assist in two (2) approved metaphysical ceremonies.

At least one (1) full year of ongoing study through Chesterfield Spiritualist College after completion of Level I.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

METAPHYSICS LEVEL III

REQUIRED CLASSES:

Angelic Consciousness

Astrology III* (Prerequisite: Astrology I and Astrology II)

Dream Work

Eastern Mysteries* (Prerequisite: completion of Metaphysics Level II)

Global Shamanism

Hermetic Practice and Alchemical Thinking* (Prerequisite: Hermetic Philosophy and Qabalistic Studies)

Numerology III* (Prerequisite: Numerology I and Numerology III)

Preparation for Directed Study

Science of the Soul and the Masters

Western Mysteries* (Prerequisite: completion of Metaphysics Level II)

METAPHYSICS LEVEL III REQUIREMENTS

IAOS member in good standing for four (4) years. 50 credits (10 Spiritual Seeker, 15 Level I, 15 Level II, 10 Level III).

Metaphysical Development classes: Eight (8) classes with a metaphysical development teacher over a period of 2 week-long seminaries.

Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of Eight (8) classes and signature of the teacher is required.

Assist in one (1) approved metaphysical ceremony.

Independently create, design and implement one (1) metaphysical ceremony to be conducted during an approved metaphysical ceremony with approval and oversight of a metaphysical development teacher.

Directed Study: Under the supervision of your Metaphysical Mentor, write a 5,000-word paper on a metaphysical topic.

At least one (1) full year of ongoing study through Chesterfield Spiritualist College following completion of Level II.

Pass a written comprehensive exam covering coursework with a minimum score of 85%.

CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM

It is the desire that students who have achieved Ordination, as well as our Guest and Staff teachers continue to study beyond their achieved certifications. To that end, the Chesterfield Spiritualist College will regularly offer intensives & learning opportunities in which continuing education courses will be offered.

CORE CURRICULUM COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

Advanced Pastoral Care and Counseling*: This class is a continuation of the skills needed for pastoral care and counseling. Multiple techniques will be explored including Brief Pastoral Counseling, ABCD Method of Crisis counseling, Spiritual Direction techniques and use of religious resources as examples. **Prerequisite: Intro to Pastoral Care and Counseling*

Advanced Symbol Interpretation*: This class offers the medium a more in-depth comprehension of the communication avenues used by the spirit world. We are forever changed by the symbols conveyed to others though our mediumship. As mediums, we are spokespersons, translators and interpreters for spirit. **Prerequisite: Symbols I and Symbols II*

Angelic Consciousness: Following the hierarchy of angels and demons, of the companions for the journey and the fallen ones, we explore the spiritual terrain of spirit beings by comparing religious traditions and literature. In the Western tradition we look at the Christian, Kabbalist, and Islamist views of angels, while in the Eastern tradition we look at the spirit beings of the Hindu, Bon, and Buddhist traditions. The connective tissue appears along the Silk Road, including Zoroastrian and Yezidi peoples. We also touch upon theories from modern mystics and quantum physicists on the nature of consciousness.

Astrology I: Learn the basic meaning of the planets, signs and houses of astrology and how these energies define personality and opportunities in our life.

Astrology II*: This class is a continuation of the metaphysical study of astrology including aspects, planetary orbs and the birth chart as a whole. This class will also investigate transits and progressed charts. **Prerequisite: Astrology I*

Astrology III*: This class involves looking at the astrological chart as a whole including planetary patterns, focal points, eclipses and fixed starts. The class is a more in-depth study of astrology and the spiritual influence and potential indicated by your chart. *Prerequisite Astrology I and Astrology II

Auras: This class will help the student develop the ability to see and feel the aura, understand colors seen in the aura and work with aura color in healing and message work.

Basic Tarot: This class will provide basic instructions for beginning tarot. Symbolism and meaning of the Major and Minor Arcana cards and different tarot spreads will be discussed so that students may give a variety of different tarot readings. This class will utilize the Rider Waite Tarot deck and students should bring this deck to class.

Basic Unity of Religions: An introduction to religion and spirituality (e.g. elementary vs. higher

religions; revealed vs. non-revealed religions; ultimate realities of the major religions and sacred texts), this class compares the similarities and differences between the world's great religions, focusing on the basic tenets for each of the following religions: Hinduism, Buddhism, Judaism, Christianity, Islam, with brief introductions to Shintoism, Sikhism, and Jainism.

Candle Ceremony: The student will learn the proper use of candles in public and private work to achieve the desired spiritual energies. Preparation and color selection for affirmations, prayers and other spiritual work will be discussed.

Chakras: This course will provide students with an understanding of the origination of chakras, their purpose and benefit, their location, function and qualities and how one should work with chakras in their life

Church Business: This class offers instruction on procedures and duties of church management. How to start, organize, and promote the Spiritualist Church. Basic responsibilities and functions of the church will be discussed.

Color: The metaphysical meaning of colors and their rate of vibration will be discussed. The student will learn to work with color as a tool in everyday life and for spiritual growth.

Communication: Students will be introduced to basic communication skills including tools for stating information clearly, listening skills and factors that could interfere with clear communication. This new class replaces the former Semantics class.

Discernment of Call*: Ministry is a vocation. How do you know it is *your* vocation? This class will assist the student in determining their forward movement into ministry by using the four basic steps of discernment, and reflective questions to explore a call to Spiritualists ministry. *Prerequisite: Medium Missionary Certificate

Distance Spiritual Healing*: This course prepares the student to confidently serve as a compassionate, and inspired 'Distant Spiritual Healer', to improve the general 'Well–being', (physical, mental, emotional) of a Healing recipient by Virtual or Absentee Healing. **Prerequisite: Spiritual Healing I.*

Dream Work: Learn the basics of maneuvering your dream body through your dreams. Topics include: common dream themes, invoking dreams, recurring dreams, lucid dreaming, the connection between dreams and our physical health, precognition in dreams, and meeting dream guides and loved ones. Experiential work includes dream recall, dream re-entry techniques and keeping a dream journal.

Eastern Mysteries*: A look into the mystery traditions of Tibet, Afghanistan, Iran, India and Asia as descending from Egypt. Eastern mystics explore consciousness through meditation, number, symbol, movement and mudra. The course includes a view of the mystical branches of traditional religions, such as Sufi, Bon, Hindu practices and Sikh as well as touch on the Russian mystic Blavatsky (Theosophy) and Guerdjeff (enneagram). **Prerequisite: completion of Metaphysic Level II*

Emergency Pastoral Care*: What does a minister do in the face of the extreme emergency or

when a crisis intervention is needed? Learn what to do in a variety of situations including suicidal threats, actual suicide, auto accidents, family violence, unexpected traumatic death, physical or sexual abuse. Appropriate follow-up techniques will be discussed including assisting the family during the first days of traumatic loss. *Prerequisite: Associate Minister Certification

Ethics: This class introduces the student to the study of ethics and defines the many meanings of ethics and their importance. The class will consider and explore how ethics pertain to mediumship, to ministry, to spiritual healing, and the practice of metaphysics.

Fundamentals of Metaphysics: Metaphysics is a divine co-creative energy appropriate for use in daily life. This introduction to the principles of metaphysics demonstrates how ritual and intention and working in accordance with natural law can improve all areas of life.

Fundamentals of Spiritualism: What is Spiritualism? This course will look at the principles, definitions, precepts, life after death, planes of existence, and spirit guides.

Global Shamanism: Shamans glean their power from direct spiritual relations to nature, the elements and Spirit. Via altered states, the shaman moves beyond the physical world, into and out of worlds above and below for the benefit of individuals and community. In visionary states reached by drumming, dancing, breathing and plant medicines, practitioners (healers, clairvoyants and wisdom keepers) accessed information directly from the gods, the plants, and ancestors. This class looks that the rituals, purposes and techniques of shamans across the globe. It also offers a powerful shamanic experience.

Guides & Guidance: Learn how to identify each of your spirit guides and discover how they each help with your clairvoyance and how they become associated with us.

Good Grief: In life, we encounter a wide variety of grief experiences in our personal lives as well as in the lives of others when we try to assist them. This class will help the student better understand the small griefs in life as well as the larger grief experiences which can overwhelm us. Learn how to move beyond grief to good grief.

Healing Addictive Behavior: This class discusses and defines the many different kinds of addiction and how to detach from dependent relationships. We will discuss healing thought systems based on love and release of fear.

Hermetic Philosophy: Hermetic philosophy, also known as Hermeticism, is a Trismegistus. These writings have greatly influenced the western esoteric tradition and is the bedrock for all meta- physical thought. This class will explore various aspects of the philosophy including the *prisca theologia*, a doctrine that affirms the existence of a single, true theology that is present in all religions and that was given by God to man in antiquity as well as the more recent *The Kybalion* where the Seven Hermetic Principles are written.

Hermetic Practice and Alchemical Thinking*: The Hermetic tradition arose in the Middle East growing to prominence in the Renaissance. Alchemy became similarly prominent but traces its roots to ancient Egypt. Both hermeticism and alchemy help the aspirant explore spiritual transformation through psychological and alchemical transmutation. We look at how the philosophies of hermeticism and alchemy interpenetrate. Their similar goals are intentions to attain

the Philosopher's Stone and the Elixir of Life. (Prerequisite: Hermetic Philosophy and Quabalistic Studies)

Hermetic Tarot*: Learn teachings from the schools of ancient wisdom using Tarot for personal and spiritual growth along with Tarot symbols, basic metaphysical teachings and spiritual laws within the 22 Major Arcana. *Prerequisite: Basic Tarot and Introduction to Hermetic Philosophy

History of Modern Spiritualism: A study of the beginnings of Modern Spiritualism and of the men and women who founded the movement.

Introduction to the Séance Room*: Students will learn the specifics of a séance such as rules and etiquette, what to expect, how natural law applies, healing and spirit manifestations. Students will experience an actual séance. **Prerequisite: Guides and Guidance*

Introduction to Pastoral Care: The heart of pastoral care and counseling is to facilitate spiritual wholeness. This class covers basic types of pastoral care and counseling situations (meaning of life, crisis, bereavement, relationship, etc), and explores a variety of essential helping skills that every pastor should cultivate and use in their care for others.

Introduction to Trance Mediumship*: Learn how the physical body is used by an outside intelligence or a spirit form (doctor, guide or loved one) presenting ideas, truth, knowledge and blessings. The student will learn trance theory and practice. **Prerequisite: Guides and Guidance*

Laws of Mediumship: This class is a study of the laws governing mental and physical mediumship. Subjects covered will be clairvoyance, trance, direct voice, apports, spirit card writing, and healing.

Life After Death: Learn about life in the spirit world. We will also discuss people, places, and experiences encountered in the spirit world.

Living the Spiritual Life: Living on purpose. Understand the keys to harmony and spiritual wellbeing: love, compassion, patience, forgiveness and an essential sense of responsibility.

Meditation: This class explains how to use meditation techniques for personal growth.

Metaphysical Journaling: Keeping a record of insights, experiences and ceremonies and results is an important part of the work of the metaphysician. This class explores ways of keeping your metaphysical journal.

Natural Law I: Learn about the laws ruling the physical, mental, and spiritual planes of life. Laws determining consequences resulting from choices are also discussed.

Natural Law II*: This class is a continued study of natural laws of the universe and how to use them to balance our lives. **Prerequisite: Natural Law I*

Numerology I: This class involves the branch of knowledge that deals with the occult significance of numbers and the vibration of letters. This helps determine an individual's personality, talents, strengths, inner needs, obstacles and ways of dealing with others at all levels including physical, emotional, mental and spiritual.

Numerology II*: A continuation of the study of numbers that reveals the challenges, tests, karmic lessons and the nuances that indicate your way of thinking. Learn how you are compatible with others in business and personal relationships. *Prerequisite: Numerology I

Numerology III*: This class offers a deeper study of numbers and number symbolism as understood by the ancient metaphysicians to more perfectly perceive ourselves and how to live in harmony with spirit. The student will look inward towards your own perfection and our individual interaction with the God Spark as indicated by your numbers. *Prerequisite: Numerology I and Numerology II

Palmistry I: This class is an introduction to the age-old practice of hand reading as an expression of physical, mental and spiritual traits. Students will be able to provide insights and formulate a basic reading by the end of this course.

Palmistry II*: Palmistry is a study of the ever-changing lines of light on the hand as individuals learn to express the joy of personal illumination and power of the True Self. This class focuses on in-depth understanding of the palm as a map of consciousness and personal growth. Focusing on interpretations and using palm reading as a tool for spiritual counseling and ministry is the goal. *Prerequisite: Palmistry I

Pastoral Care for the Dying and Their Families: Spiritualists are often focused on the afterlife, but a Spiritualist minister may be called to the side of the terminally ill or actively dying patient. This class focuses on the dying process and helping people walk that final journey. It will also explore pastoral duties to the family before, during, and after the passing of their loved one.

Practical Aspects of Mediumship: This is a very thorough class on the considerations, planning, preparation and challenges of doing private readings, clairvoyant circles, psychic fairs, etc. Attention to detail in preparing the environment, responsibility to clients will be explored.

Prayer: Prayer is a very powerful and essential tool for everyone, particularly those in the ministry. This class will help students understand the four basic types of prayer that a healer may be called to make during their public ministry. The student will also learn about different ways of praying, and how to create powerful, meaningful prayers.

Preparation for Directed Study: The student will work one on one with the director of metaphysics or a metaphysical teacher appointed by the director to compile a self-ordained, well-researched metaphysical study topic that will result in a paper of 5,000 words. The student will use the APA or MLA style for citations. The paper is designed to support innovation thinking on metaphysical topics.

Preparation for the Ministry I: Responsibilities of the minister as speaker, counselor, leader, and friend are explained.

Preparation for the Ministry II*: This class offers extended insights into ministerial expectations and duties. **Prerequisite: Preparation for the Ministry I*

Public Presentation of Mediumship: The student will learn the acceptable methods of public and private clairvoyance and platform decorum. This class also incorporates the practical aspects and

duties involved in the Spiritualist worship service, including proper platform decorum of the chairperson position, lecture/sermon presentation, message work, and proper etiquette in ushering.

Public Speaking: This course teaches practical theory with content, delivery, and appearance application for speaking before the public.

Qabalistic Studies: The esoteric or hidden mysteries of the Qabalah and the Tree of Life will be explored to gain a better understanding of man and his place in God's creation. The goal of this class is to gain a deeper understanding of the spiritual path we each travel as it relates to the Tree of Life. Students will learn to apply an understanding of the Qabalah into their daily lives for practical and spiritual living.

Ritual in the Spiritualist Church: The student will learn how to implement ritual in the Spiritualist church as a means to reaffirm meaning, to bond community, and to encounter mystery. Demonstrations and examples of sacramental and alternative rites will be offered.

Ritual Work of the Metaphysician*: Students will learn the proper use of ritual and angelic energies in the work of the metaphysician. Proper use of natural law to work as co-creator with God, awaken the God spark within and increase personal responsibility in metaphysical ritual will be offered. A variety of traditional and interfaith rituals will be discussed, and students will plan and perform a ritual for a specific purpose. *Prerequisite: Candle Ceremony, and Fundamentals of Metaphysics

Sacred Calendar: This class defines the sacred calendar including the solstice and equinox points, Easter, Wesak, Christ Festival and other high energy times of the year and their spiritual purpose.

Sacred (Eastern) Writings I: This class offers a study of the sacred writings from various religious leaders throughout the centuries.

Sacred (Western) Writings II: This class is a continuation and in-depth study of the writings from various religions and religious leaders.

Science of the Soul and the Masters: The Soul is the divine principle of God within each of us, the True Self. This class explores the Solar Angel, initiations as expansions of consciousness, inner alchemy and how the Ascended Masters become our bridge to the freedom found in expanded states of consciousness.

Sermon Preparation I: The student will learn the structuring of a lecture or sermon and the difference between the two, in addition to topic selection and techniques of delivery.

Sermon Preparation II*: Extended development of the content and delivery of a sermon. **Prerequisite: Sermon Preparation I*

Spiritual Anatomy: Learn how to associate the etheric and spiritual centers with the physical anatomy.

Spiritual Healing I: This class teaches methods, techniques, and philosophy of spiritual healing.

Spiritual Healing II*: The psychology of spiritual healing and practical procedures for public and private practice with prayer, meditation and laying on of hands are taught. The student will learn how to utilize the power of love, intention and intuition. **Prerequisite: Spiritual Healing I*

Spiritual Healing Service Practicum — With guidance and direction from the instructor, this practicum prepares the student to personally and confidently present a spiritual healing service to a church or a private group. Students should come prepared to present a spiritual healing service invocation, benediction, a short healing meditation and a sermonette. *Prerequisite: Spiritual Healing II

Spiritual Reflection for Ministry*: This class is experiential in nature and designed to help the student explore their inner leadings toward ministry up to this point in their education. Techniques include questions to reflect on the student's spiritual journey, spiritual gifts, spiritual disciplines and how these experiences might help others. *Prerequisite: Associate Minister Certification

Spiritualism and the Study of the Old and New Testaments: Focusing on specific passages which refer to "Spiritualism" (i.e. Physical phenomena and Mediumship), this course gives the students the tools to independently study the Old and New Testament while offering an overview of the Torah, prophets, Gospels, Jesus, the writings of Paul, and other related material such as the history, structure, translations and versions found in the Old and New Testament of the Bible.

Symbology: The Language of the Universe: Five common esoteric symbols link the world's religious traditions. This course explores all of the variations of basic patterns of symbol worldwide and the inter-connections between symbol, thought and culture. These mystical images link the world's religious traditions, including Pagan pantheons, Egyptian hieroglyphs, Qabalah, Astrology, Tarot, I Ching, alchemical sigils, runes and the common emblems of the Freemasons, Rosicrucians, etc.

Symbols I: A basic foundation in symbology will be presented, including the interpretation of universal, conventional and personal symbols and their guidance in our lives.

Symbols II*: This class is a continued in-depth study of the use of symbols. **Prerequisite: Symbols I*

Western Mysteries*: An essential guide looking at the experiences and discoveries of the mystery tradition and occult from their appearance in the Egyptian and Greco-Roman mystery schools, through the traditions of other schools of metaphysics in the 20th century. The class explores the connections of many spiritual disciplines, beyond the Judeo-Christian religions to the mystery schools of the last century. **Prerequisite: completion of Metaphysics Level II*

Working with Moon Energies: This class is a study of the spiritual energies available during the moon cycles, their use for spiritual growth and how to use these energies in public as well as private meditation work. Students will learn how to prepare for incoming energies, how to craft a ceremony and utilize the energies of both full and new moons.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

- APPENDIX A: DORSCH-KUIPER APPLICATION
- APPENDIX B: INTENT TO TEST FORM
- APPENDIX C: HEALING AFFIDAVIT
- APPENDIX D: COMMUNITY SERVICE FORM
- APPENDIX E: PUBLIC WORSHIP SERVICE FORM
- APPENDIX F: STUDENT CHECKLIST FOR INDIVIDUAL PROGRAMS
 - SPIRITUAL SEEKER REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST
 - SPIRITUAL HEALER REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST
 - MEDIUM MISSIONARY REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST
 - ASSOCIATE MINISTER REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST
 - ORDINATION REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST
 - o METAPHYSICS LEVEL I REQUIRMENT CHECKLIST
 - o METAPHYSICS LEVEL II REQUIRMENT CHECKLIST
 - METAPHYSICS LEVEL III REQUIRMENT CHECKLIST
- APPENDIX G: IAOS DRESS CODE FOR SERVICES
- APPENDIX H: LIST OF SPIRITUALIST CHURCHES

DORSCH-KUIPER SCHOLARSHIP APPLICATION

INDIANA ASSOCATION OF SPIRITUALISTS CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE

Name:		Date:	
Address:			
Phone:	Email:		
Years of study at Cl	nesterfield Spiritualist Seminar	y, beginning in	
Medium Missionary	Certification received in		
Associate Minister	Certification received/anticipat	ed in	
Ordination sponsor:			
use a separate sheet		required to complete the application. Pleas 3 personal/professional letters of	se
1. Describe in detai	l how you think you will benef	it from the receipt of this scholarship.	
	experiences and explain how of ministry you envision offer	you see each affecting, both positively ing.	and
3. What are your plant	ans for your ministry?		

INTENT TO TEST FORM

INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF SPIRITUALISTS CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE 50 Lincoln Drive, Chesterfield, IN 46017

aving completed all of the academic and additional requirements for the			
program level of		, I am	
submitting my intent to test during the weekend/week-lo	ng semina	ary of	
	, 20	, or during	
the month of, 20			
I understand that I must complete the testing application	and pay t	he testing fee at	
walk-in registration for the above-mentioned weekend/w	veek-long	seminary or	
prior to the administration of my test.			
Name:		Date:	
		_	
Approved by:		Date:	

SPIRITUAL HEALING AFFIDAVIT

INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF SPIRITUALISTS CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE 50 Lincoln Drive, Chesterfield, IN 46017

I hereby certify that		served me as a
channel for healing.		
A brief statement describi	ng your healing experience:	
Print your name:		Date
Your Signature:		
Your Contact Information); 	

Dear Patron,

A Spiritualist Healer is one who, either through their own inherent power or through their mediumship, is able to impart vital, curative force to pathologic conditions.

Your Healing student is working toward Spiritual Healing Certification. As part of their requirements, they must provide <u>verification</u> of their healing ability. A Spiritual Healing is defined as a <u>physical</u>, <u>mental or emotional condition</u> <u>removed or relieved</u>.

On completion of this affidavit, you are affirming this student's healing ability, God Bless and Thank You for Your assistance.

(You may return this Affidavit to your healing student or mail to Camp Chesterfield's address above with "Attention to Director of Healing").

*Student Healer's Signature:

*REVISED AFFIDAVIT, OCTOBER 2020

RECORD OF COMMUNITY SERVICE

INDIANA ASSOCIATION OF SPIRITUALISTS CHESTERFIELD SPIRITUALIST COLLEGE 50 Lincoln Drive, Chesterfield, IN 46017

Student's Name:
Address:
Phone Number:
Email Address:
Fulfilling Requirements for: Associate Minister Ordination
Name of Organization Served:
Address:
Phone Number:
Email Address:
Contact Name (printed):
Contact Signature:
Service Performed:
Date(s) of Service:
Hours of Sarvice

For Academic Office Use:		
Received by	Date	
ApprovedComments/Reccommendations		
Comments/Reccommendations		
Signature of Dean	Date	
PUBLIC WORSHIP SI	ERVICE AFFIDAVIT	
INDIANA ASSOCIATIO CHESTERFIELD SPIR 50 Lincoln Drive, Che	ITUALIST COLLEGE	
Sermon & Mess	ages Affidavit	
I,		of
1,		01
		_ Church
hereby certify that		
moreoy certify that		
served our church with a sermon and gave messag	ges.	
	Name	
	Date	
COMMENTS:		

PROGRAM COMPLETION SELF CHECKLIST FORMS FOR STUDENTS

SPIRITUAL SEEKER

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR COMPLETION

STUDENT NAME:

IAOS MEMBERSHIP DATE			
CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS
Chakras			
Communication			
Fundamentals of			
Spiritualism			
Guides and Guidance			
History of Modern Spiritualism			
Spiritualisiii			
Life After Death			
Living the Spiritual Life			
Meditation			
Natural Law I			
Public Speaking			

SPIRITUAL HEALER

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR CERTIFICATION

STUDENT NAME:

HEALING MENTOR:			
 SPIRITUAL SEEKER TEST DAT	E:		
CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS
Ethics			
Healing Addictive Behavior			
Prayer			
Spiritual Anatomy			
Spiritual Healing I			
Spiritual Healing II*			
Spiritual Healing Service Practicum			
Distance Spiritual Healing			
Two (2) Healing Elective Classes			
Two (2) Healing Elective Classes			
		include leading	two (2) services for the congregation.
HEALING SERVICE DEMONSTRATION	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS
		l	1

Six (6) affidavits of spiritual healing ability

HEALING AFFIDAVIT	FROM	DATE RECEIVED	COMMENTS

MEDIUM MISSIONARY

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR CERTIFICATION

SPIRITUAL SEEKER TEST DATE: CLASS INSTRUCTOR TAKEN COMMENTS Ethics Intro to the Séance Room* Intro to Trance Mediumship* Laws of Mediumship Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy Symbols I	SPIRITUAL SEEKER TEST DATE:		
CLASS INSTRUCTOR TAKEN COMMENTS Ethics Intro to the Séance Room* Intro to Trance Mediumship* Laws of Mediumship Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy			
CLASS INSTRUCTOR TAKEN COMMENTS Ethics Intro to the Séance Room* Intro to Trance Mediumship* Laws of Mediumship Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy			
Intro to the Séance Room* Intro to Trance Mediumship* Laws of Mediumship Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy	CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	COMMENTS
Intro to Trance Mediumship* Laws of Mediumship Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy	Ethics		
Laws of Mediumship Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy	Intro to the Séance Room*		
Natural Law II* Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy	Intro to Trance Mediumship*		
Practical Aspects of Mediumship Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy	Laws of Mediumship		
Public Presentation of Mediumship Spiritual Anatomy	Natural Law II*		
Spiritual Anatomy	Practical Aspects of Mediumship		
	Public Presentation of Mediumship		
Symbols I	Spiritual Anatomy		
b y moots 1	Symbols I		
Symbols II*	Symbols II*		
Five (5) Elective Classes	Five (5) Elective Classes		
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes	. ,		

Five (5) Elective Classes

Twelve (12) classes with a certified staff mediumship development teacher over a period of three (3) week-long seminaries.

SEMINARY DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS

Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of 12 classes and signature of the teacher is required.

ON-GOING DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS

A minimum of three (3) clairvoyant demonstrations during three (3) different approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

CLAIRVOYANT	ONLINE / IN		
DEMONSTRATION	PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

ASSOCIATE MINISTER

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR CERTIFICATION

STUDENT NAME:			
ORDINATION SPONSOR:			
MEDIUM MISSIONARY TEST I	DATE:		
CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS
Advanced Symbols Interpretation*			
Basic Unity of Religions			
Discernment of Call*			
Good Grief			
Introduction to Pastoral Care			
Prayer			
Preparation for the Ministry I			
Sermon Preparation I			
Spiritual Healing I			
Spiritualism and the study of the Old and New Testaments			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			

Five (5) Elective Classes

Four (4) classes with one (1) certified staff mediumship development teacher during a week-long seminary.

SEMINARY DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS

Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of four (4) classes and signature of the teacher is required.

ON-GOING		DATE	
DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	TAKEN	COMMENTS

A minimum of three (3) sermons during approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

STUDENT SERVICE - SERMON DEMONSTRATION	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

Demonstration of sermon and clairvoyance at the same service. Six (6) public worship services at a minimum of three (3) different churches. A letter from each church served stating date, service performed and signed by presiding Spiritualist minister or board member. *Lectures do not qualify for this requirement.

PUBLIC WORSHIP SERVICE - SERMON & CLAIRVOYANCE DEMONSTRATION	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

30 hours of community service. Community Service must be approved prior to performing the service.

COMMUNITY SERVICE	APPROVED BY	DATE / LENGTH OF TIME	COMMENTS

ORDINATION

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR CERTIFICATION

STUDENT NAME:

DEVELOPMENT CLASS

CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS
Advanced Pastoral Care and Counseling			
Church Business			
Emergency Pastoral Care			
Pastoral Care for the Dying and Their Family			
Preparation for the Ministry II*			
Ritual in the Spiritualist Church			
Sacred (Eastern) Writings I			
Sacred (Western) Writings II			
Sermon Preparation II*			
Spiritual Reflection for Ministry*			

TAKEN

COMMENTS

INSTRUCTOR

Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person development classes with a certified staff mediumship development class teacher. A minimum of four (4) classes and signature of the teacher is required.

ON-GOING	INCEDITOR	DATE	COMMENTES	
DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	TAKEN	COMMENTS	

A minimum of three (3) chairperson demonstrations during approved student services, prior to submitting your intent to test.

STUDENT SERVICE - CHAIRPERSON DEMONSTRATION	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

Demonstration of sermon and clairvoyance at the same service. Eight (8) public worship services at a minimum of three (3) different churches. A letter from each church served stating date, service performed and signed by presiding Spiritualist minister or board member. *Lectures do not qualify for this requirement.

PUBLIC WORSHIP SERVICE - SERMON & CLAIRVOYANCE DEMONSTRATION	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

40 hours of community service. Community Service must be approved prior to performing the service.

COMMUNITY SERVICE	APPROVED BY	DATE / LENGTH OF TIME	COMMENTS
COMMUNITY SERVICE	ATTROVEDET	OF TIME	COMMENTS

METAPHYSICS LEVEL I

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR COMPLETION

STUDENT NAME:

SPIRITUAL SEEKER TEST	DATE:		
CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS
Astrology I			
Auras			
Basic Tarot			
Color			
Ethics			
Fundamentals of Metaphysics			
Palmistry I			
Numerology I			
Sacred Calendar			
Symbology: The Language of the Universe			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			
Five (5) Elective Classes			

Metaphysical Development Class: Eight (8) classes with a certified staff metaphysical development teacher over a period of two (2) week-long seminaries.

SEMINARY DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS

Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of eight (8) classes and signature of the teacher is required.

signature of the teacher is required.					
ON-GOING		DATE			
DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	TAKEN	COMMENTS		

Assist staff teacher with one (1) metaphysical ceremony.

METAPHYSICAL CEREMONY	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

METAPHYSICS LEVEL II

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR COMPLETION

STUDENT NAME:			
METAPHYSICS LEVEL I TEST	DATF:		
WETAITISIES ELVEETTEST	DAIL.		
		DATE	
CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	TAKEN	COMMENTS
Astrology II*			
Candle Ceremony			
Hermetic Philosophy			
Hermetic Tarot*			
Metaphysical Journaling			
Numerology II*			
Palmistry II*			
Qabalistic Studies			
Ritual Work of the			
Metaphysician*			
Working with Moon Energies			
Five (5) Metaphysical Elective			
Classes			
Five (5) Metaphysical Elective			
Classes			
Five (5) Metaphysical Elective Classes			
Five (5) Metaphysical Elective			
Classes			
Five (5) Metaphysical Elective			

Classes

Metaphysical Development Class: Eight (8) classes with a certified staff metaphysical development teacher over a period of two (2) week-long seminaries.

SEMINARY DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS

Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of eight (8) classes and signature of the teacher is required.

ON-GOING DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS

Assist staff teacher with two (2) metaphysical ceremonies.

METAPHYSICAL CEREMONY	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

METAPHYSICS LEVEL III

SUMMARY OF CLASS WORK AND CHECKLIST FOR COMPLETION

STUDENT NAME:

METAPHYSICAL MENTOR:

METAPHYSICS LEVEL II TES	I DATE.		
CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	DATE TAKEN	COMMENTS
Angelic Consciousness			
Astrology III*			
Dream Work			
Eastern Mysteries*			
Global Shamanism			
Hermetic Practice and Alchemical Thinking*			
Numerology III*			
Preparation for Directed Study			
cience of the Soul and the lasters			
Western Mysteries*			

Metaphysical Development Class: Eight (8) classes with a certified staff metaphysical development teacher over a period of two (2) week-long seminaries.

SEMINARY		DATE	
DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	TAKEN	COMMENTS

Metaphysical Development Class Alternative: Regularly attend online or in person metaphysical development classes with a certified staff metaphysical development class teacher. A minimum of eight (8) classes and signature of the teacher is required.

signature of the teacher is required.				
ON-GOING		DATE		
DEVELOPMENT CLASS	INSTRUCTOR	TAKEN	COMMENTS	

Assist staff teacher with one (1) metaphysical ceremony.

METAPHYSICAL CEREMONY	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

Independently create, design and implement one (1) metaphysical ceremony to be conducted during an approved metaphysical ceremony with approval and oversight of a metaphysical development teacher.

INDEPENDENT METAPHYSICAL CEREMONY	ONLINE / IN PERSON	DATE	COMMENTS

Under the supervision of your Metaphysical Mentor, write a 5,000-word paper on a metaphysical topic.

DIRECTED STUDY PAPER			
COMPLETE	MENTOR	DATE	COMMENTS

IAOS DRESS CODE FOR SERVICES

(Includes Ushers, Platform Workers & Musicians)

SLACKS/PANTS:

APPROPRIATE: Slacks, trousers, and dress pants. Belts should be worn when belt loops are present on slacks, trousers, or dress pants.

INAPPROPRIATE: Jeans, Leggings, jeggings, shorts, skorts, cargo pants, and sweatpants.

DRESSES/SKIRTS:

APPROPRIATE: Dresses that go below the knee and do not leave shoulders bare, and skirts which go below the knee.

INAPPROPRIATE: Excessively high slits or slits three inches above the knee, and any dress/skirt where one cannot sit professionally.

SHIRTS/BLOUSES/SWEATERS:

APPROPRIATE: Short or long-sleeve collared shirts, blouses, sweaters, and turtlenecks that do not leave shoulders bare.

INAPPROPRIATE: Polo shirts, t-shirts, see-through tops, low-cut, halter tops, spaghetti strap tops, sweatshirts, athletic tops and crop tops.

JACKETS/SUITS:

APPROPRIATE: Suits and sport coats.

FOOTWEAR:

APPROPRIATE: Dress shoes, dress flats, heels, and dress boots. Hosiery is not required long as a professional appearance is maintained.

INAPPROPRIATE: Athletic shoes, slippers, moccasins, flip-flops, military style boots and sandals.

ACCESSORIES:

APPROPRIATE: Ties, belts, and jewelry.

ALWAYS BE MINDFUL THAT YOUR ATTIRE DOES NOT DISTRACT FROM YOUR MEDIUMSHIP DEMONSTRATION.

SPIRITUALIST CHURCHES FOR STUDENT WORK

*THIS LIST WILL BE UPDATED FREQUENTLY. CONTACT THE ADMINISTRATION OFFICE FOR THE MOST CURRENT LIST

<u>Alabama</u>

Alaska

Arizona

Church of the Living Spirit, NSAC 15414 North 19th Avenue. A, Glendale 480-297-6502 | reverendhaviness@gmail.com Contact: Mary Beth LoVecchio

Spiritualist Living Center, NSAC 14465 RH Johnson Boulevard, Sun City West 602-510-2326 | info@slcaz.org Contact: Maggie Simpson, Secretary

Arkansas

California

Celebrate Life Spiritualist Community 4530 18th Street, San Francisco 415-613-7962 | celebratelifesc@gmail.com Contact: James Bae

Central Spiritualist Church, NSAC 2949B Fulton Avenue, Sacramento 916-652-4568 | centralspiritualistchurch@gmail.com Contact: Pat Carey

Circle of Love Spiritualist Community 471 Maidu Drive, Auburn 916-783-3546 | camptonvillelady@gmail.com Contact: Carol Kinne

First Spiritual Temple, NSAC 33 Banbury Drive, San Franciscso 707-303-5617 | canyonrivers1967@aol.com Contact: Tamara Polly Golden Gate Spiritualist Church 1901 Franklin Street, San Franciscso 415-225-6947 | bdullea@sbcglobal.net

Contact: Barbara Dullea

Spiritualist Chapel of the Pines 457 Grass Valley Highway, #7, Auburn 916-933-2751 | afreitag@pacbell.net

Contact: Terri Freitag

Spiritualist Church of Revelation 200 West Colorado Boulevard, Monrovia 626-256-3403 | secretaryscor@yahoo.com Contact: Sharon Sharp

Spiritualist Church of Two Worlds, NSAC 1550 San Leandro Boulevard, San Leandro 925-930-6663 | averybabon@yahoo.com Contact: Avery Babon

Summerland Spiritualist Church of the Comforter 1028 Garden Street, Santa Barbara 805-689-5538 | spiritualistchurch.newsletter@gmail.com Contact: Eva Vega

The Spiritual Science of Life Church, NSAC 729 Morse Street, San José 408-615-0214 | peruchlise@aol.com Contact: Louise Peruch

Colorado

Connecticut

Albertson Memorial Church 293 Sound Beach Avenue, Old Greenwich 203-637-4615 | info@albertsonchurch.org Contact: India Beard

First Spiritualist Church of Willimantic 268 High Street, Willimantic 860-268-4501 | firstspiritualistwillimantic@gmail.com Contact: Sheryl SanFilippo National Spiritualist Church of Norwich 29 Park Street, Norwich 860-886-8522 | nscnorwich@yahoo.com Contact: Jill Redding

New London Spiritualist Church c/o Sleep Inn 5 King Arthur Drive, Niantic 860-993-6000 | sandramorse@mac.com

Contact: Sandra Morse

Pine Grove Spiritualist Camp 34 South Pine Street, Niantic 860-739-2157 | mfcaswell23@yahoo.com Contact: Maureen Caswell

Pinpoint of Light Spiritualist Camp 546 Town Farm Road, Hartford 207-515-1016 | pinpointoflight@live.com Contact: Barbara Eckhardt

Spiritualist Church of Peace & Light 43 Hatch Street, Mystic 860-442-1709 | scpeacelight@yahoo.com Contact: Lynn Gaffin

The Church of the Infinite Spirit 80 Walsh Avenue, Newington 203-376-8350 | webmaster@newingtonspiritualistchurch.org Contact: Susana Lopes

Delaware

Washington D.C.

The Spiritualist Church of Two Worlds 3038 Q Street, NW, Washington D.C. 202-726-0895 | julimari77@hotmail.com Contact: Maria Wolf

Florida

New Vision Spiritualist Center 2328 Semoran Boulevard South, Orlando 407-855-6294 | cat_dog@bellsouth.net Contact: Neenah Barefield Spiritualist Church of Awareness, NSAC 3210 North Chickasaw Trail, Orlando 407-782-8823 | scoa-secretary@aol.com

Contact: Ron Lerch

Georgia

Hawaii

Idaho

Illinois

Christabelle Spiritualist Church 8002 Service Road, Cherry Valley Contact: Jennifer Bertone

Church of The Spirit 2651 North Central Park Avenue, Chicago 773-293-1967 | spiritspks@aol.com Contact: Lio Danny Guteirez

J.T. & E.J. Crumbaugh Spiritualist Church 102 South Pearl Street, LeRoy 309-962-9076 | crumbaughchurch@live.com Contact: Terry Lowe

Love of Spirit Spiritualist Church NSAC 210 West Mulberry Street, Normal 309-366-8385 | info@yourloveofspirit.com Contact: Colleen Tucker

Spiritualist Church of Truth 6343 West Cuyler Avenue, Chicago Contact: Judith Galar

Indiana

First Spiritualist Church of Gary 2430 West 11th Avenue, Gary Contact: Bessie Reynolds

The Spiritualist Church of Indianapolis 3020 South Meridian Street, Indianapolis 317-850-3142 | webmaster.tscoi@gmail.com Contact: Jacqueline A. Reeves

Fort Wayne Metaphysical Chapel 1615 N. Wells Street, Fort Wayne, IN 260-482-9530 www.fwmchapel.com Contact: Rev. Rosalyn Brundage

Psychic Science Spiritualist Church 1415 Central Ave., Indianapolis, IN 317- 840-9910 psychicsciencechurch@gmail.com Contact: Rev. Kathy Carrell

Progressive Spiritualist Church 2201 E. 54th St., Indianapolis, IN psc-2201@outlook.com Contact: Rev. Kandy Kendall

Sanctuary of Eternal Truth 1002 E. Market St. New Albany, IN 502-762-440 Contact: Rev. Mark Barnard

<u>Iowa</u>

Kansas

Kentucky

Louisiana

Maine

Augusta Spiritualist Church 113 Townsend Road, Augusta 207-622-8980 | augusta@mainespiritualism.org

Contact: Kevin LaBrie

Portland Spiritualist Church 17 Dunn Street, 2nd Floor, Westbrook 207-797-2039 | info@portlandspiritualistchurch.org Contact: Sallie Chase Spiritualist Church of Eternal Life 352 Crowley Road, Sabattus 207-376-5318 | curlysmart1228@yahoo.com

Contact: Linda LaBrie

Temple Heights Spiritualist Church 4 Park Street, Northport 207-338-1355 | templeheights@gmail.com

Contact: Jean Bower

The Harrison D. Barrett Memorial Church, NSAC 304 Hancock Street, Bangor 207-848-2273 | hdb@mainespiritualism.org Contact: Betty Simpson

Maryland

Massachusetts

Church of Spiritual Growth, NSAC 16 Lexinton Street Temple Shalom Emeth, Burlington 603-380-3688 | churchofspiritualgrowthnsac@gmail.com

First Spiritualist Church of Brockton 243 Winthrop Street, Rehobeth 508-813-7769 | cdscuba@hotmail.com

Contact: Claudette Cahill

First Spiritualist Church of Salem 34 Warren Street, Salem 978-745-2098 | leodancer@comcast.net Contact: Janice Kaplan

Healing Hands of Light Spiritualist Church 465 Granby Road, Chicopee 413-519-9669 | denise.m.sullivan7@gmail.com Contact: Denise Sullivan

Michigan

First Spiritual Temple of Royal Oak 3224 Greenfield Road, Royal Oak 313-477-8707 | firstspiritualtemple@aol.com

Contact: Karen Redmond

First Spiritualist Temple of Detroit 2724 Goodrich, Ferndale 248-545-5680 | smithnana3212@gmail.com

Contact: Dianne Smith

Flower Memorial Spiritualist Church 430 West Bellevue, Leslie 517-392-7092 | flowermemorialchurch@gmail.com Contact: Tracy Wilson

Golden Rule Spiritualist Church 7444 Old US 31 North, Charlevoix 231-881-7916 | kfosterstanhope@gmail.com Contact: Karen Stanhope

Center of Enlightment 2724 Goodrich, Ferndale, MI 48220 313-549-8739 | www.coechurch.com Contact: Rev. Marie Phillips

Golden Light Spiritualist Church (ISA) 2110 N. Milford Rd., Highland, MI 248-882-0903 | Independentspiritualists.org Contact: Rev. Sue Chase

Good Samaritan Spiritualist Church 5401 Oak Park Dr., Clarkston, MI 48347 810-397-4430 | www.spiritualistchurchofthegoodsamaritan.org Contact: Rev. Patricia Nelson

Metropolitan Metaphysical Church 28629 Hoover Rd., Warren, MI 48093 586-549-4811 Contact: Michalyn Grett

Spiritual Episcopal Church of Eaton Rapids 141 Frost Street, Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 517-914-5068 Contact: Rev. Betty Matthews

Spiritual Episcopal Church of Owosso 610 Clinton St., Owoaao, MI 48867 810-241-0192

Contact: Rev. Bessie Hope

Temple of the Sun Royal Oak Woman's Club 404 S. Pleasant St., Royal Oak, MI 48067 248-417-3620

Contact: Rev. Terry Ryan

Minnesota

Mississippi

Missouri

Fifth Spiritualist Church of St. Louis 6026 South Kingshighway Boulevard, St. Louis 314-276-4875 | nlgheen@earthlink.net Contact: Nancy Gheen

Montana

Nebraska

Nevada

Spiritualist Desert Church, NSAC 3305 West Spring Mountain Road, Suite 51, Las Vegas 702-876-8783 | spiritualistdesertchurch@yahoo.com Contact: Louise Barkdull

Spiritualist Society of Reno 1135 Terminal Way, #100 (The Circle's Edge), Reno 775-329-5980 | tomalisa2@aol.com Contact: Lisa Butler

New Hampshire

Church of Spiritual Life, NSAC 58 East Broadway Street, Derry 603-502-2019 | info@churchspirituallifenh.org Contact: Annie Collyer

New Jersey

Church of Eternal Life, NSAC 243 West Olive Street, Westville Contact: Carolyn Emory

New Mexico

New York

Attunement Spiritual Chapel Hampton Inn Buffalo-Hamburg 5444 Camp Road, Hamburg 716-866-3099 | pastor@attunementspiritualistchapel.org Contact: Beverly Sabo

First Spiritualist Temple of East Aurora 29 Temple Place, East Aurora 716-652-5018 | fstofeastaurora@gmail.com Contact: Jeanne Phoenix Laurel

Lily Dale Spiritualist Church East Street, Lily Dale 716-397-1048 | ldscnsac@outlook.com Contact: T. Lynne Forget

New Horizon Spiritualist Church, NSAC 692 Broadway (AM Vet Post 88), Massapequa 516-792-5919 | contractor24@hotmail.com Contact: Norma Morreale

Plymouth Spiritualist Church 29 Vic Park A, Rochester 585-271-1470 | plm.spirit.1470@gmail.com Contact: Craig Coburn

Summerland Church of Light, NSAC 380 Nicolls Road, East Setauket 631-316-1588 | info@summerlandchurchoflight.com Contact: Valerie Miller

The Temple of Metaphysical Science, NSAC 12 Baker Street, Patchogue 631-868-3878 | karenalbin2002@aol.com Contact: Karen Beebe

North Carolina

North Dakota

Ohio

Sunflower Chapel 609 Watervliet Avenue, Dayton 937-252-3299 | fdm742@sbcglobal.net

Contact: Frances Montgomery

United Spiritualists of the Christ Light Church 270 Northland Blvd., Ste. 110, Cincinnati, OH 45246 513-254-1257 | www.uscl.org Contact: Rev. Judy Brooks

White Lily Chapel 20 S, Main St., Ashley, OH 740-747-2233 | www.whitelilychapel.org Contact: Rev. Cindy Berkshire

Oklahoma

Oregon

Pennsylvania

Celestial Spiritualist Church 421 North Preston Street, Philadelphia 215-222-0322 | revhutt@gmail.com Contact: Betty J. Hutt

Rhode Island

South Carolina

South Dakota

Tennessee

Texas

First Spiritualist Church of Austin 4200 Avenue D, Austin 512-478-7612 | spiritchurch@hotmail.com Contact: Cledstone Jordan

Contact. Cleustone Jordan

First Spiritualist Church of Houston 2115 Turner Street, Houston 713-240-0058 | lianaliles@gmail.com

Contact: Liana Liles Pitman

<u>Utah</u>

Vermont

Virginia

The Memorial Spiritualist Church, NSAC 307 West 37th Street, Nortolk 757-622-5070 | lynncetn7@aol.com Contact: Mary Taylor

Washington

Church of Spiritual Truth, NSAC 1228 26th Avenue Court, Milton walkingwiththemagicstaff@gmail.com

Contact: Dee Chapman

Church of Spiritual Unity, NSAC 1228 26th Avenue Court, Milton 253-927-2365 | colleenmohler@yahoo.com

Contact: Jill Mohler

West Virginia

Way Memorial Spiritualist Church 27 Maryland Street, Wheeling 304-233-5365 | waymemorialtemple@gmail.com

Contact: Lisa Davie

Wisconsin

Church of Peace, A Spiritualist Center 5108 S 108th Street, Hales Corner 262-332-1758 | lynn.lynn22@gmail.com

Contact: Rev. Debra Malison

First Spiritualist Church of West Allis 6228 West Washington Street, West Allis 262-492-4943 | firstspiritualistchurchwa@gmail.com

Contact: Theresa Gonzales

New Beginning Spiritualist Church 304 Hill Street, Wonewoc 608-566-0334 | sagerun@frontier.com

Contact: Diane Walters-Butler

Summerland's Lakeview Spiritualist Church 2976 Triverton Pike Drive, Fitchburg 608-354-2694 | revannettehaak@slscmadison.org

Contact: Becky Schwartz

Wyoming